
 

 

 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA 
Commissioners' Meeting 

February 27, 2024 (Hybrid Meeting) 

5:00 P.M. 

1. Call to Order/Pledge of Allegiance  

2. Approval of the Agenda 

3. Commissioner Absence 

4. Communications  

5. Approve minutes of the February 13, 2024, Commissioner meeting 

6. Voucher Approval 
 Accounts Payable Vouchers: 200803-200870 $      179,767.64 
 Payroll Vouchers:  200785-200802 $   1,055,718.23 
  SUBTOTAL VOUCHERS: $   1,235,485.87   

 ACH Payroll Transfer: $   1,210,238.49 
 941 Payment – ACH Payroll Transfer $      269,292.74 
 Wire Transfer Fees $               80.00   
  SUBTOTAL PAYROLL ACH TRANSFERS: $   1,479,611.23 

 GRAND TOTAL VOUCHERS AND ACH TRANSFERS:   $ 2,715,097.10 
 

7. Local 3390 Reports  

8. Chiefs Reports 

9. Standing Committee Reports 

10. Chairman’s Report 

11. 2022 Bond Update 

12. OLD BUSINESS     
a.  
 

13. NEW BUSINESS 
a. Resolution 2024-02 – Post Retirement Medical Program  P. Oldenburg 
b. Station 50 Request for Qualifications – Architecture Services J. Johnson 
c. Resolution 2024-03 – EMS Membership Program  K. Hackmeister 
d. Resolution 2024-04 – Medical Billing Policy 6000.3  K. Hackmeister 

 

14. Open Public Comment (state your name for the record, you will have 3 minutes) 

15. GOOD OF THE ORDER 

16. SPECIAL INTERESTS/UPCOMING EVENTS   
 
17. EXECUTIVE SESSION pursuant to RCW 42.30.110(1)(g) to review the performance of a public 

employee.  No action will be taken. 
 

Adjourn Meeting.  Next regular meeting will be March 12, 2024, at 5:00 PM 



 

 
 
 

 

COMMISSIONERS’ MEETING MINUTES 
February 13, 2024 

Chairman Urvina called the meeting to order at 5:00 p.m. and led the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
Present: Commissioners Urvina, Wilsie, Entze, Sutich and Nelson, F/C D. Doan, A/Cs T. Meyer, 
S. Booth, J. Johnson, J. Black, Finance Director K. Hackmeister (virtual), Human Resources 
Program Manager J. Gunder and EA T. VanderVaate.   
 
APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA 
Commissioners Wilsie and Sutich moved and seconded approval of the agenda as presented. With 
no further discussion, the MOTION CARRIED by unanimous roll call vote. 

 
COMMISSIONER ABSENCE 
 
COMMUNICATIONS  
 
MINUTES AND BLANKET VOUCHERS 
Commissioners Sutich and Nelson moved and seconded approval of the January 23, 2024 meeting 
minutes.  With no further discussion, the MOTION CARRIED by unanimous roll call vote. 
 
Commissioners Nelson and Wilsie moved and seconded approval of Accounts Payable Vouchers 
200681-200784 for a total consideration of $401,501.05.  With no further discussion, the 
MOTION CARRIED by unanimous roll call vote. 

 
LOCAL 3390 REPORTS 
 
CHIEFS REPORTS 
 
Chief Black reported: 
 New SCBA equipment has arrived, it has a 15-year life cycle; the Training Division is 

getting everyone trained and equipment will be deployed at the end of this month; 
 Logistics is closing Stations 53 and 57 in preparation for construction 
 

Chief Booth reported: 
 Upon rewriting the MACC policy – the stakeholder group decided to pivot and move to 

create a Department Operations Center Plan; the stakeholder agencies will still coordinate 
resources and come together to meet the needs of the community; it is hoped to have a plan 
in place by the end of the second quarter; 

 District has a surplus of AEDs, he is working with D/C Dumas to distribute the AEDs to 
various local agencies and community locations.  He is working with the finance division to 



 
Board of Commissioners 

02‐13‐2024 Meeting Minutes 
Page 2 of 3 

 

 

ensure compliance with surplus rules and will bring another update to the Board next 
month. 

 
Chief Meyer reported: 
 The District provided support for the Night to Shine event over the weekend; 
 There were a couple of fires in the Point Fosdick area that are considered suspicious.  Gig 

Harbor Police Department and the Pierce County Fire Marshall are investigating.  Our 
crews did a great job knocking down the fire quickly; 

 District will be conducting active shooter training at Oceans 5.  I will will be meeting on 
March 21 with leaders from participating agencies to discuss unified command and some of 
the command concepts; 

 With Stations 53/57 we will be moving apparatus and people; the intention during the time 
those stations are closed will be to prioritize putting either an Aid Unit or Medic Unit in 
service depending on available staffing; 

 Our seven new lateral employees started yesterday – there are 6 firefighter/paramedics and 
one firefighter/EMT; 

 FEMA approached us and other agencies asking for two-three additional members for the 
USAR Task Force.  We will be conducting an internal process for one hazmat technician 
and possibly two rescue specialists; 

 District has two upcoming lieutenant retirements, Jake Flick and Tony Carr have been 
selected to promote when those vacancies open. 

 He injured himself off-duty and is currently on modified duty and will be having surgery on 
March 1. 

  
Chief Doan reported: 
 The District will no longer be letting Peninsula School District use the Fox Island fire 

station as a bus stop; with upcoming construction, the entire property will be fenced off 
and the stop had to be relocated.  Some area residents are frustrated; 

 He met with Katrina Knutsen at the City of Gig Harbor to talk about TIFs and the current 
legislation.  It does not look like the City is looking at TIFs. 

 He sits on the Washington Fire Chiefs Legislative Committee and reported on a few of the 
bills being supported. 

 
STANDING COMMITTEE REPORTS  
 
CHAIRMAN’S REPORT 
 
2022 CAPITAL BOND PROJECTS UPDATE 
Chief Johnson reported updates regarding the Training Campus and Stations 53, 57, 51, and 50 
projects.   
 
OLD BUSINESS  
A.  
 
NEW BUSINESS 



 
Board of Commissioners 

02‐13‐2024 Meeting Minutes 
Page 3 of 3 

 

 

A. County Radio System Access Fees.  Chief Doan advised the Board he forwarded them all a letter the 
County Fire Chiefs Association sent to Pierce County regarding the 300% increase in radio 
subscriber fees.  He requested discussion if there were any questions or concerns with the direction 
the County Chiefs were taking the matter.   No discussion followed. 

B. Station 53/57 Bid Award.  Chief Johnson presented the Board with the bid results for the Station 
53/57 projects and requested the bid approved award to the lowest bidder, BFC Construction in the 
amount of  $2,203,000.  Commissioner Sutich and Nelson moved and seconded approval of 
awarding the bid to BFC Construction.  With no further discussion, the MOTION CARRIED by 
unanimous roll call vote. 
 

PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
GOOD OF THE ORDER 
 
SPECIAL INTERESTS/UPCOMING EVENTS 
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION 
At 5:26 pm, Chairman Urvina announced a 60-minute executive session pursuant to RCW 
42.30.110(1)(h) indicating the meeting would be called back to regular session at 6:26 pm.  A 
6:26 pm Chairman Urvina called the meeting back to regular session, 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
There being no further business to discuss, Chairman Urvina adjourned the meeting at 6:26 pm.  

The next regular meeting will be 5:00 pm on Tuesday, February 27, 2024. 

 

 
Chairman/Commissioner 

 
Commissioner 

 
Commissioner 

 
Commissioner 

 
Commissioner 

 
 
_______________________________________ 
Attest:  District Secretary 



ACCOUNTS PAYABLE: Dollar Amount TOTAL

Voucher Nos: 200803 through 200841 77,345.04$                77,345.04$                          

77,345.04$                77,345.04$                          
 

77,345.04$                       

VOUCHER APPROVAL: February 13, 2024
APPROVED BY Finance Director Krystal Hackmeister

Total Accounts Payable Invoices:

GRAND TOTAL ACCOUNTS PAYABLE:

PAYABLES RUN FOR COUNTY'S WARRANT PRINTING ON 2/14/2024

















ACCOUNTS PAYABLE: Dollar Amount TOTAL

Voucher Nos: 200842 through 200842 54,207.62$                54,207.62$                          

200843 through 200867 32,708.93$                32,708.93$                          

200868 through 200870 15,506.05$                15,506.05$                          

102,422.60$              102,422.60$                        

 

102,422.60$                     

VOUCHER APPROVAL: February 20, 2024

APPROVED BY Finance Director Krystal Hackmeister

Total Accounts Payable Invoices:

GRAND TOTAL ACCOUNTS PAYABLE:

PAYABLES RUN FOR COUNTY'S WARRANT PRINTING ON 2/21/2024















PAYROLL: Dollar Amount TOTAL

Voucher Nos: 200785 through 200802 1,055,718.23$    1,055,718.23$     
(Benefit & L&I Monthly Payment)

1,210,238.49$    1,210,238.49$     
941 ACH Payroll Transfer Amount: 269,292.74$       269,292.74$        

Wire Fees Transfer Amount: 80.00$                80.00$                 

2,535,329.46$   GRAND TOTAL ACCOUNTS PAYABLE & PAYROLL:

VOUCHER APPROVAL: February 12, 2024
APPROVED BY K. Hackmeister 

ACH Payroll Transfer Amount:



VOUCHER APPROVALS
Pierce County Fire District #5 Time: 09:51:04 Date: 02/12/2024

02/23/2024 To: 02/23/2024 Page: 1

Voucher Claimant Trans Date Type Acct # Amount Memo

   200785 AFLAC 514 02/23/2024 Payroll 1 2,283.09

   200786 BHT BUSINESS SERVICES 
INDUSTRY

515 02/23/2024 Payroll 1 11,932.36

   200787 COLUMBIA BANK 516 02/23/2024 Payroll 1 25,563.08

   200788 DEPT LABOR & INDUSTRIES 517 02/23/2024 Payroll 1 117,682.58

   200789 EMPLOYMENT SECURITY 
DEPT - PFMLA

518 02/23/2024 Payroll 1 14,353.28

   200790 GHFFU HEALTH & WELFARE 519 02/23/2024 Payroll 1 89,563.97

   200791 GIG HARBOR PENINSULA FF 
ASSOCIATION

520 02/23/2024 Payroll 1 640.00

   200792 KEY BANK - DECISION POINT 521 02/23/2024 Payroll 1 230,882.16

   200793 KEY BANK - FIDELITY 522 02/23/2024 Payroll 1 15,470.17

   200794 LOCAL 3390 GHFUHW TRUST 523 02/23/2024 Payroll 1 242,842.72

   200795 Local 3390 GHFUHW Trust 524 02/23/2024 Payroll 1 19,197.14

   200796 THE HARTFORD 525 02/23/2024 Payroll 1 7,657.08

   200797 TRUSTMARK VOLUNTARY 
BENEFITS

526 02/23/2024 Payroll 1 6,518.71

   200798 VISION SERVICE PLAN - AT 527 02/23/2024 Payroll 1 92.60

   200799 WA CARES FUND - LTC 528 02/23/2024 Payroll 1 3,506.66

   200800 WASHINGTON PER SYSTEM
EMP

529 02/23/2024 Payroll 1 25,153.16

   200801 WASHINGTON STATE 
TREASURER

530 02/23/2024 Payroll 1 21,416.66

   200802 WLEO & FFR SYSTEM EMPE 531 02/23/2024 Payroll 1 220,962.81

1,055,718.23Total Vouchers:



VOUCHER APPROVALS
Pierce County Fire District #5 Time: 09:51:04 Date: 02/12/2024

02/23/2024 To: 02/23/2024 Page: 2

Voucher Claimant Trans Date Type Acct # Amount Memo

Commissioner Signatures:

=

________________________________________  ________________________________________
Chair

=

________________________________________  ________________________________________

==

________________________________________  

=

CERTIFICATION: I, the undersigned do hereby certify under penalty of perjury, that the materials have been 
furnished, the services rendered or the labor performed as described and that the claim is a due and unpaid 
obligation against Pierce County Fire District #5 and that I am authorized to authenticate and certify to said 
claim.

=

________________________________________    _______________
District Secretary                                                              Date                                                                         

=



 

 

 
 

RESOLUTION 2024-02 
February 27, 2024 

 
RESOLUTION by the Board of Fire Commissioners of Pierce County Fire Protection District No. 5 
establishing a Retiree Medical Program for LEOFF II, PERS II, and PERS III employees. 
 
WHEREAS, the Pierce County Fire Protection District No. 5 Board of Fire Commissioners recognizes 
that medical plan expenses have increased substantially and this expense has affected the ability of 
LEOFF II, PERS II, and PERS III employees to retire before Medicare eligibility; and  
 
WHEREAS, continuing to keep personnel employed in mentally and physically stressful environments 
for this extended length of service is contrary to the District’s long-held belief of the need to maintain a 
healthy workforce; and  
 
WHEREAS, the District has determined that replacing employees at retirement age with new employees 
would provide a cost savings for the District that can be shared with retirees: 
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED, by the Board of Fire Commissioners of Pierce 
County Fire Protection No. 5 that it is in the best interest of the District and its employees to establish a 
Retiree Medical Program for LEOFF II, PERS II, and PERS III employees within the following 
parameters: 
 

 Employees must meet the following criteria to qualify for the Retiree Medical Benefits Program: 
 

-- The employee must be a LEOFF II, PERS II, or PERS III employee of PCFD #5. 
 

--  The employee must have completed a minimum of 15 years of service with PCFD #5. 
 

-- LEOFF II employees must be at least 50 years of age on the date of retirement. 
 

-- The PERS II or PERS III employee must be at least 55 years of age on the date of 
retirement. 
 

 Employees wishing to retire must notify the District by August 1st of the previous year and they 
must then retire between April 1st and June 30th of the following year.  If an employee gives 
notice of retirement to the District and then does not retire, this retiree medical benefit will be 
forfeited forever, unless deemed to be mutually beneficial or due to an unforeseen circumstance, 
which will be considered on a case-by-case basis by the Board of Fire Commissioners. 

 
--  Exceptions to the timeframes for notification and retirement will also be considered on a 

case-by-case basis and, if deemed to be mutually beneficial to the employee and to the 
District, may be approved by the Board of Fire Commissioners. 

 
 The Fire Chief is directed to establish, through fire district policy, a specific application process 

and any necessary reporting requirements to properly monitor this Retiree Medical Program. 
 

 Each employee who qualifies for the Retiree Medical Program shall receive $527 per month as a 
contribution to the employee’s Health Reimbursement Account (HRA).  

 



 

 

 An employee will continue to receive benefits under the Retiree Medical Program until one of the 
following occurs: 

 
-- The employee has received the benefit for twelve (12) years. 
 
-- The employee becomes eligible for Medicare, except that Employees who retire at the age 

of 65 or older, and meet all other eligibility requirements, will be eligible to receive the 
Retiree Medical Program HRA contribution for a period of 6 months after becoming 
eligible for Medicare.  

 
-- The employee voluntarily withdraws from the program. 

 
 The Retiree Medical Program will be evaluated periodically.  A three-year review period is 

recommended.  
 
 Should the Board of Fire Commissioners elect to cancel the Retiree Medical Program after it is 

implemented and in effect, all employees who are receiving a Health Reimbursement Account 
(HRA) contribution from the program will continue under the conditions set forth by the 
resolution in effect at the time of their retirement until they are no longer eligible to participate in 
the Retiree Medical Program.  

 
 Benefit and Program changes made in this resolution only apply to members retiring after 

adoption of this resolution. Members who retired during previous versions of the Retiree Medical 
Program continue to receive the program benefits under the Resolution and Program rules in 
effect on the date of their retirement. 

 
Approved at a regular meeting of the Board of Fire Commissioners, Pierce County Fire District No. 5, 
this 27th day of February, 2024. 
 

PIERCE COUNTY FIRE PROTECTION 
DISTRICT NO. 5 
 

      _________________________________ 
      Chairman 
 

_________________________________ 
Commissioner 
 
_________________________________ 
Commissioner 
 
_________________________________ 
Commissioner 
 
_________________________________ 
Commissioner 

Attest: 
 
 
__________________________ 
District Secretary 



 
 

 
 

  
RESOLUTION 2024-03 

February 27, 2024 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF FIRE COMMISSIONERS OF PIERCE COUNTY 
FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT NO. 5 (Gig Harbor Fire & Medic One) ESTABLISHING A 
MEDICAL SERVICES MEMBERSHIP PROGRAM, SETTING FORTH THE 
QUALIFICATIONS OF MEMBERSHIP AND THE BENEFITS OF SUCH MEMBERSHIP. 
 
 WHEREAS, Gig Harbor Fire & Medic One levies not only a general tax on taxable 
property within the District, but also an emergency medical services levy, to be used for emergency 
medical services, including transporting patients with life threatening or non-life threatening 
injuries; and 
 
 WHEREAS, as established by the Board of Fire Commissioners in this Resolution, the 
proceeds of this levy will in part be used to provide payment of charges incurred by qualified 
residents and taxpayers of the District for Fire Department transports, as to that portion of the 
charges which are not payable by third parties and insurers, as allowed by law; and 
 
 WHEREAS, this resolution is conditioned upon continuing approval by the qualified 
electors of the District of the EMS tax levy;  
  
NOW THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED: 
 
 Section 1. All persons who are transported by Pierce County Fire Protection District 
No. 5 ambulances or other apparatus shall be charged for all services as a result of the transport at 
the rates set forth in resolution by the Board of Fire Commissioners and as amended from time to 
time.  Each person transported will be billed for all services provided. Medical services members 
and non-members will be billed at the same rate. Pursuant to RCW 52.12.131, the District may 
adopt reasonable charges for emergency medical services as set forth in billing policies of the 
District. 

 
 Section 2. The District recognizes the contribution of property tax dollars paid by 
property owners within the taxing district boundaries.  In an effort to reduce the burden on these 
persons, the district shall allow for waiving of co-pays and co-insurance due from patients who 
are transported and who, at the time of service being provided, meet one or more of the 
following conditions: 
 

1. at the time of service, have a physical address located within the borders of the 
district, Washington, or; 

2. at the time of service, and as necessary, can provide documentation of ownership of 
taxable real property located within the borders of the district, Washington, or; 



 
 

                                                                                                                                                              
Revised 2/27/2024 
 

3. the parents or legal guardians of minor children, with whom they may or may not 
reside, and who may be financially responsible for any fees associated with service, 
meet the conditions of item 1 or 2 above. 

Utilizing the following guidelines, and in consideration of the criteria above, The District will 
waive deductibles, co-pays and co-insurance as follows for the services listed: 
 
Medical Transport (ALS 1, ALS 2 and BLS Emergencies):  following payments from insurance 
providers, balances due from the patient for deductibles, co-pay or co-insurance shall be waived. 
 
The district shall apply the benefit of this waiver program to those meeting the conditions above, 
whether they have private or public insurance or, if they are uninsured. 
 

Section 3. Non-members:  Persons receiving transport by PCFD No. 5 equipment who 
are not entitled to membership shall be required to pay all charges incurred.  Billing procedures 
shall follow the Pierce County Fire Protection District No. 5 Fee Schedule rates which are set forth 
in resolution by the Board of Fire Commissioners. Non-members remain fully responsible for any 
amount due which is not paid by third parties.  
 
 Section 4. This Resolution shall take effect on March 1, 2024.   
 
Approved at a regular meeting of the Board of Fire Commissioners, Pierce County Fire District 
No. 5, this 27th day of February, 2024. 

 
PIERCE COUNTY FIRE DISTRICT NO. 5 

    
  
      _________________________________ 
      Chairman 

 
_________________________________ 
Commissioner 
 
_________________________________ 
Commissioner 
 
_________________________________ 
Commissioner 
 
_________________________________ 
Commissioner 

 
Attest: 
 
____________________________________ 
District Secretary 



 

 

 
 
 
 

RESOLUTION 2024-04 
February 27, 2024 

 
 
BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Fire Commissioners of Pierce County Fire Protection 
District No. 5 hereby adopts the attached Medical Billing Policy which is attached hereto and 
incorporated herein by this reference and shall supersede and replace all prior editions of the 
policy: 
 
Medical Billing Policy No. 6000.3.  
 
Approved at a regular meeting of the Board of Fire Commissioners, Pierce County Fire 
Protection District No. 5, this 27th day of February, 2024. 

 
PIERCE COUNTY FIRE PROTECTION 

      DISTRICT NO. 5 
 
 
      _________________________________ 
      Chairman 

 
 
_________________________________ 
Commissioner 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Commissioner 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Commissioner 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Commissioner 

 
Attest: 
 
 
_______________________________ 
District Secretary 



Pierce County Fire Protection District 5 Medical Billing Policy Manual 

 

Billing Policy Manual, Emergency Transport Services (Effective March 1, 2024)                                                       1 | P a g e  
 

Pierce County Fire Protection District 5 

“Gig Harbor Fire & Medic One” 
 

 

 

 

 

 

Billing Policy Manual 

Emergency Response Services 

Effective March 1, 2024 
 



Pierce County Fire Protection District 5 Medical Billing Policy Manual 

 

Billing Policy Manual, Emergency Transport Services (Effective March 1, 2024)                                                       2 | P a g e  
 

 

GIG HARBOR FIRE & MEDIC ONE 

Organizational Policy 
 

 

Title:      Medical Billing Policy 

Reference:    6000.3 

Applies to:    All Personnel 

Approved by:    Assistant Chief Perry Oldenburg 

      Finance Director Krystal Hackmeister 

 

Contents 
District Emergency Medical Services Billing Policies .............................................................................................. 3 

1.0  Purpose .................................................................................................................................................................. 3 

1.1  Philosophy ............................................................................................................................................................. 3 

1.2  Services for which Fees Apply ........................................................................................................................... 3 

Billing Agents, Process, Credit, Waivers and Collections ...................................................................................... 4 

2.0  Billing Agent .......................................................................................................................................................... 4 

2.1  Billing Process ...................................................................................................................................................... 4 

2.2  Credit ...................................................................................................................................................................... 5 

2.3  Uncollectible Accounts ........................................................................................................................................ 5 

2.4  Waivers .................................................................................................................................................................. 6 

Fees for Service .................................................................................................................................................................. 8 

3.0  Fees for Service.................................................................................................................................................... 8 

 

 

  



Pierce County Fire Protection District 5 Medical Billing Policy Manual 

 

Billing Policy Manual, Emergency Transport Services (Effective March 1, 2024)                                                       3 | P a g e  
 

District Emergency Medical Services Billing Policies 
 

1.0 Purpose 
 
The District has established a billing program and polices to cover costs associated with providing 
emergency medical care, patient transport and rescue services.  These policies are intended to 
provide transparency for those who receive our services, establish a billing philosophy, provide 
guidance, as needed, to third party billing agents and ensure that the district meets billing standards 
established by insurance providers.  These policies and programs are specific to emergency service 
response and do not apply to other programs that the district may authorize or participate in. 
 

1.1 Philosophy 
 
As a public agency the district has a responsibility to manage funds carefully.  Our philosophy is to bill 
for services provided as they relate to the costs incurred in providing emergency medical care, patient 
transport and rescue services.  The district’s programs are designed to lessen the burden on persons 
who receive our services.  They further take into consideration the tax payer supported levies the 
district relies upon to cover operational, administrative and capital expenditures, as well as grant 
awards and supplemental insurance payment programs that the district may be eligible to receive. 
  
These programs and polices shall be periodically reviewed to ensure consistency in fees and 
processes among similar agencies across the region. 
 

 1.2 Services for which Fees Apply 
 
The District has established a billing schedule for all emergency response services provided by our 
personnel.  The following services, as defined and considered herein, shall be included in our billing 
schedule.  As applicable and when clarity is needed, additional definitions as described by the 
Centers for Medicare and Medicaid may apply to BLS and ALS emergency definitions. 
 
BLS Emergency:  Emergency response and transportation by ground ambulance vehicle, with the 
provision of medically necessary supplies and services, including basic life support ambulance 
services as defined by the state.  BLS ambulance services are staffed by an individual who is 
qualified in accordance with state and local laws as an emergency medical technician (EMT), 
Advanced EMT or Paramedic. 
 
ALS (1) Emergency:  Emergency response and transportation by ground ambulance vehicle, with 
the provision of medically necessary supplies and services, including the provision of an advanced 
life support assessment or at least one advanced life support intervention.  ALS assessment is an 
assessment performed by an ALS crew (Advanced EMT or Paramedic) as part of an emergency 
response that was necessary because the patient’s reported condition at the time of dispatch was 
such only an ALS crew was qualified to perform the assessment. 
 
ALS (2) Emergency:  Emergency response and transportation by ground ambulance vehicle, with 
the provision of medically necessary supplies and services including:  a) at least three separate 



Pierce County Fire Protection District 5 Medical Billing Policy Manual 

 

Billing Policy Manual, Emergency Transport Services (Effective March 1, 2024)                                                       4 | P a g e  
 

administrations of one or more medications by intravenous push/bolus or by continuous infusion 
(excluding crystalloid fluids); or b) ground ambulance transport and the provision of at least one of the 
following ALS2 procedures:  manual defibrillation/cardioversion; endotracheal intubation; central 
venous line; cardiac pacing; chest decompression; surgical airway, or intraosseous line. 
 
Mileage:  Mileage charges begin at the location of the emergency scene and conclude upon arrival of 
our medic unit at the destination facility. 
 
Standby Services: As available, district staff may provide or be scheduled for standby, dedicated on 
site First Aid services at programs and events within The District. Standby time is charged from the 
time personnel arrive at the event until the conclusion of onsite services.  In the event of an 
emergency, personnel providing standby services may be recalled from the event without notice.  
Should this occur, no charges will be applied for time that the personnel were unavailable.  For the 
purpose of this item, standby services do not include a dedicated medic unit.  On site emergencies 
that require an ambulance will be responded to in the same manner as any other 911 call. 

Billing Agents, Process, Credit, Waivers and Collections 
 
2.0 Billing Agent 
 
The District may elect to use a third-party billing agent to submit claims and process payments on 
their behalf.  Prior to contracting with any billing agent, the district will require that any third-party 
agent used to process claims and billing statements has procedures in place that will ensure: 
 

1. the agent/agency and their employees are adequately trained in appropriate Health Insurance 
Portability and Accountability Act (HIPAA) processes, and; 
 

2. claims issued and payments received are adequately accounted for and remitted to the district 
in a timely, efficient manner, and; 
 

3. records of all claims processed and payments received, whether through private or public 
insurance or submitted by the patient individually, are maintained in accordance with state 
records retention laws. 
 

The name, address, phone number and email of the billing agent used by the district shall be 
appropriately displayed on the district website.  Further, upon request of a/the patient or their 
advocate, the district shall make this information available to those who have limited or no access to 
the district website. 
 

2.1 Billing Process 
 
At the time of service, or as soon thereafter as feasible, patients or their advocate shall make 
arrangements to provide insurance information to the District.  Alternatively, insurance information 



Pierce County Fire Protection District 5 Medical Billing Policy Manual 

 

Billing Policy Manual, Emergency Transport Services (Effective March 1, 2024)                                                       5 | P a g e  
 

may be provided directly to the districts third party billing agent if or when incident reports and billing 
cycles have been closed. 
 
The district recognizes that a/the third-party billing agent may have established processes in place to 
efficiently and effectively bill for services.  Absent any defined processes that provide greater benefit 
to the patient or the district, District shall endeavor to close medical incident reports (charts) and 
submit calls for billing within forty-five (45) calendar days, better defined as no later than fifteen (15) 
days following the end of the calendar month in which services are provided. 
 
Following submission of medical incident charts, a/the third-party billing agent shall submit claims to 
insurance providers and remit statements of account to the patient.  This process shall occur within 
thirty (30) calendar days of a/the third-party billing agency having received the medical incident chart. 
Thereafter, patients shall receive a statement of account no less than once each thirty (30) calendar 
days. 
 

2.2 Credit 
 
All accounts are due and payable at the time of initial billing.  While the district or their third-party 
billing agent may submit insurance claims on the patient’s behalf, the patient is ultimately responsible 
to pay all fees associated with receipt of services. 
 
The District authorizes their third-party billing agent to make payment arrangements with any patient 
who has a balance due following or absent any payments received from insurance.  Such payment 
arrangements shall be limited to a credit period of two years (730 days) from the date of the original 
invoice.  Accounts for which payment arrangements have been made shall not be charged interest. 
 
Should the patient fail to make arranged payments, The District or their third-party billing agent may 
elect to submit accounts to collection, as herein described. 
 

2.3 Uncollectible Accounts 
 
Accounts will be considered delinquent when the following conditions are met: 

 
1. following ninety days of missing or failed payments from insurance providers or patient, except 

for; 
 

2. when there is communication from a/the insurance provider within the ninety-day time period, 
indicating payment is forthcoming or services are being reviewed, this communication shall be 
considered to keep the account active, and; 
 

3. if, upon conclusion of any applicable insurance payments, the patient fails to make payment, 
negotiated or otherwise, within the timeframe allowed. 

 
The District may elect to use a third-party administrator to process accounts sent to collections.  The 
district retains the right to apply collection charges that are in addition to and separate from the initial 
fees for service. 



Pierce County Fire Protection District 5 Medical Billing Policy Manual 

 

Billing Policy Manual, Emergency Transport Services (Effective March 1, 2024)                                                       6 | P a g e  
 

The District may alternatively elect an ongoing review and write off process of uncollectible accounts. 
 

2.4 Waivers 
 
Charity Care 
Under the guidance of Washington Administrative Code, 246-453, and the Revised Code of 
Washington, Title 70, Chapter 70.170, The District may elect a policy related to Charity Care.  This 
policy applies to “indigent persons” as described in WAC 246-453-040 and utilizes the income 
guidelines provided by the United Stated Department of Health and Human Services. 
Financial assistance may be provided to a responsible party with gross family annual income 
greater than the Federal Poverty Income Guidelines if circumstances such as; extraordinary non-
discretionary expenses, future earning capacity, and the ability to make payments over an extended 
period of time warrant such consideration. 

 
Eligible persons or their designated representative may request this classification be applied to their 
fees for services.  The patient or persons requesting this status must provide all required 
documentation within thirty (30) days of the request.  Failure to provide appropriate information and 
required documentation may result in the patient being denied Charity Care status. 
 
Following review of any such request, The District shall determine the eligibility of the patient to 
receive Charity Care.  If it is deemed that the patient is eligible, notice shall be provided within forty-
five (45) calendar days and the balance of their account, or portion thereof shall be written off. 
 
Specific to this section of the policy, all definitions, procedures, criteria, guidelines, standards and 
reporting requirements stated in WAC 246-453 shall apply. 
 
Denials of charity care shall be subject to the appeal procedures applicable under RCW 246-453-020 
(9) or any recodification thereof.  
 
Resident Levy Write Off Waiver 
The District recognizes the contribution of property tax dollars paid by property owners within the 
taxing district boundaries.  In an effort to reduce the burden on these persons, the district shall allow 
for waiving of co-pays and co-insurance due from patients who are transported and who, at the time 
of service being provided, meet one or more of the following conditions: 

 
1. at the time of service, have a physical address located within the borders of the district, 

Washington, or; 
 

2. at the time of service, and as necessary, can provide documentation of ownership of taxable 
real property located within the borders of the district, Washington, or; 
 

3. the parents or legal guardians of minor children, with whom they may or may not reside, and 
who may be financially responsible for any fees associated with service, meet the conditions 
of item 1 or 2 above. 

 



Pierce County Fire Protection District 5 Medical Billing Policy Manual 

 

Billing Policy Manual, Emergency Transport Services (Effective March 1, 2024)                                                       7 | P a g e  
 

Utilizing the following guidelines, and in consideration of the criteria above, The District will waive 
deductibles, co-pays and co-insurance as follows for the services listed: 
 

Medical Transport (ALS 1, ALS 2 and BLS Emergencies):  following payments from 
insurance providers, balances due from the patient for deductibles, co-pay or co-insurance 
shall be waived. 
 

The district shall apply the benefit of this waiver program to those meeting the conditions above, 
whether they have private or public insurance or, if they are uninsured. 
 
Additionally, The District shall endeavor to continue this waiver program until such time that it 
becomes financially difficult to continue district operations while providing the waiver to residents of 
our district. 
 
Authorization to Apply Waivers 
The Fire Chief or their delegated personnel charged with coordinating medical billing is authorized to 
apply waivers outlined in this policy.  In all cases, prior to authorizing any applicable waiver, the Fire 
Chief or their designee shall ensure the guidelines and policies included herein have been met. 
 
  



Pierce County Fire Protection District 5 Medical Billing Policy Manual 

 

Billing Policy Manual, Emergency Transport Services (Effective March 1, 2024)                                                       8 | P a g e  
 

Fees for Service 
 

3.0 Fees for Service 
 
The District charges an “all inclusive” rate for patients treated and transported.  Resident fees are 
reduced in consideration of support provided through tax dollars and waivers provided for in this 
policy and resolutions of the Board of Fire Commissioners.  Regardless of any waiver that residents 
are eligible to receive, the district must still establish a fee for the provision of services to ensure 
accuracy when billing applicable insurance providers.   Non-residents are assessed fees comparable 
to similar services provided throughout the region.   
 
Mileage fees are charged in addition to the “all inclusive” rate and are accounted for beginning at the 
scene of the emergency and ending at the admitting facility. 
 
Service Resident Rate Non-Resident Rate 
BLS Emergency $   750 $   750 
ALS 1 Emergency $1,389 $1,389 
ALS 2 Emergency $1,522 $1,522 
 
Mileage 

 
$21.00/per mile 

 
$21.00/per mile 
 
 

   
   

 
 

   
   

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Adopted: __________ day of _________, 2024 by ___________________________________ 
 
Amended: __________________________ Amendment Document: _____________________ 
 
Amended: __________________________ Amendment Document: _____________________ 
 


	2024-02-27 AGENDA
	MINUTES Commissioner Mtg 02-13-2024
	Voucher Totals - 02.13.24
	Voucher Approvals - 02.13.24
	Voucher Totals - 02.20.24
	Voucher Approvals #1 - 02.20.24
	Voucher Approvals #2 - 02.20.24
	Voucher Approvals #3 - 02.20.24
	Voucher Totals - 02122024 Payroll
	Voucher Approvals - 02122024 Payroll
	Resolution 2024-02 Post Retirement Medical Program
	Resolution 2024-03 EMS Membership Program
	Resolution 2024-04 Medical Billing Policy 6000.3
	Resolution 2024-04 Attachment Medical Billing Policy 6000

